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Our mission is to assist the clothing industry to enhance its global
competitiveness through the adoption of an industry-led approach to
effectively strengthen our services in:

* Training and developing management and technical professionals;

* Promoting sound commercial practices, as well as productivity and
quality improvement programmes;

* Facilitating the application of information technology.
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HENMBEBE 2012
EDUCATION & CAREERS EXPO 2012
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Same as past years, the Authority participated in the 4-day Education & Careers Expo 2012 organised by the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council from 9 to 12 February 2012, to show the great works of our students and to introduce the latest training programmes information to
the public.

%A Show 2012
Information Expo on Multiple Pathways 2012
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The Information Expo was organised by the Education Bureau, with support of the Federation for Continuing Education in Tertiary Institutions, Hong
Kong Association of Careers Masters and Guidance Masters, and Hong Kong Education City. The Authority joined the Expo on May 12 & 13, to provide
comprehensive information about study opportunities in the clothing industry for Secondary 5 and 7 school leavers under the old education system, and
Secondary 6 graduates under the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education. The great works of our students were also displayed. The booth attracted a
vast number of interested parties.
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Mini Fashion Show
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“Penumbra” as the theme of the Mini Fashion Show, organised by the two classes of first year students from Honour degree programmes of Middlesex
University, UK. The Show was held at 24 May 2012 at the Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre in Shek Kip Mei. It provided a great opportunity for the students
to gain experience on the whole process in organising a fashion show.
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Information Day cum Design Comppetition Prizing Ceremony 2012
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The Information Day was held on 30 June, together with the prizing ceremony of the Fashion Design Competition 2012 with the theme of
movie costume. There was a showcase of the winners’ creations as well as our students’ works. Groups of teachers and students from
other schools also visited the facilities of the Authority.

4 Events in Brief | /EBALE



2012 28 BEF B BE—RERE
2012 Worldskills Hong Kong Competition - Ladies’ Dressmaking
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“Ladies Dressmaking” as one of the category of “2012 Hong Kong Youth Skills Competition”, was co-organised by the Authority, Vocational Training
Council, Construction Industry Council, and the Hong Kong Polytechnic University Industrial Centre on 24 & 25 August 2012. It aimed to encourage
teenagers to develop skills regarding ladies dressmaking and ladies dress design. Our part-time Diploma student Tat Wai Lin won the Champion of the
competition.
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Hok Yau Club "JUPAS Talk 2012°
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The “JUPAS Talk 2012”, organised by Hok Yau Club, was held on 2 October. The Talk aimed to provide different pathways of further study
for Secondary 5 and 7 school leavers under the old education system, and the Secondary 6 graduates under the Hong Kong Diploma of
Secondary Education.

The Authority set up a booth to promote the latest programme information offered.
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FEHE 2011/2012
Graduation Ceremony 2011/2012
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Mr. Arkin Ng, Chairman of Textile Institute Association (Hong Kong) Limited officiated our Graduation Ceremony which was held on 28 November. The
alumnus Mr. Edward Leung also shared his study path after his graduation. Graduation certificates, awards of outstanding performance and service were
presented. Graduates also shared their learning experience on project works.

JEBI4RE | Events in Brief
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CHAIRMAN
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Since its establishment 38 years ago, the Clothing Industry Training
Authority has witnessed the tremendous growth of the local clothing
industry and the more recent transformation from a manufacturing base
to a global fashion hub that covers merchandising, sourcing and product
development. The Authority has also kept abreast of the development
of the industry at all times by adjusting its role from the past technical
training of sewing operatives to now partnering with apparel firms to
nurture talents with both technological and managerial skills.

During my Chairmanship of the Authority in the past 6 years, we have
witnessed the unprecedented downturn of the economy that has greatly
affected the growth of our industry. Undaunted by the many difficulties and
laid by a firm foundation, our industry has managed to face the challenge
in a most proactive manner. As the training body for the industry,
the Authority has also taken up the challenge in a positive manner by
revamping our training programmes and to widen our service scope by
working closely together with various stakeholders of the industry.

It is noted with pleasure that under my leadership, the Authority has
completed a number of initiatives in response to the needs of the industry
and the trainees. In 2009, the Kowloon Bay Training Centre had a face-
lifting change with facilities upgrade in order to provide a better learning
environment and campus life for our trainees. The renovation included
state-of-the-art knitting and garment production workshops, chic exhibition
areas and a spacious Resource Centre. They provide a modernised and an
update service platform enhancing the standard of vocational education
and nurturing fashion professionals.
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To encourage the application of information technology and to provide the
industry with resources on process improvement and product quality, the
Authority established two platforms, namely, ‘Fashion Merchandisers Club -
www.merchandisers.nk’ and ‘Fashion Solution Centre - www.fashionsolution.
hk' in 2009. These platforms enable users to gain access to the latest trend and
development of the industry, discuss common interest on forums, share working
cases and acquire knowledge from the merchandising wiki.

In 2010, the Authority established the OUHK-CITA Learning Centre (OCLC)
at the Lai King Training Centre in collaboration with the Open University
of Hong Kong (OUHK) and its Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional and
Continuing Education (LiPACE). The main objective of the partnership is to
cultivate the younger generation who wish to devote their career to fashion
by enriching their knowledge in the related fields of design and business.

In response to the 3-3-4 new Senior Secondary Education reform and
demands from the industry and students, the Authority has dedicated much
effort to collaborate with various tertiary institutions to offer Diploma,
Advanced Diploma, Bachelor and Master Degree programmes. As such, we
can provide our students with more articulation pathways to pursue their
further studies. The OUHK and LiPACE, Gordon Institute of TAFE of Australia,
Middlesex University and Manchester Metropolitan University of United
Kingdom are some of our partner institutions.

The issue of sustainability has received increasing attention in the industry. To
cope with this, the Authority partnered with many leading apparel enterprises
in the setting up of the Sustainable Fashion Business Consortium (SFBC) and
the Global Apparel, Footwear and Textile Initiative (GAFTI). Both organisations
aim to promote sustainability and establish safety and social standards for
the industry. They also provide platforms for practitioners to share their
experience in the journey towards sustainability. The Authority also joined
efforts with other organisations to take part in various projects funded by the
Sustainable Development Fund and the Innovation and Technology Fund. This
will hopefully create a first-mover advantage for the local industry with respect
to the development of sustainability.

This is a special year for me as | will complete my six-year tenure at the
Authority in September 2013. Together with the enthusiastic support of all
members of the Authority, it has been my honour to serve the local industry
at a time of great change. | am particularly pleased to have fostered many
new developments in the Authority to offer various alternative pathways to
many of our young people who would one day become key personnel for
this very important industry of Hong Kong.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to the
present and past members of the Authority, Executive Director Prof. Philip
Yeung, the management team, staff members, partners and all stakeholders
of the Authority for their continued support and contribution.

EfFER1E | Chairman’s Forward
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Throughout the past 38 years, the Clothing Industry Training Authority has been
accomplishing a superb achievement of enriching the people of the Hong Kong
Fashion Industry with expertise, indispensable skills and self-confidence through the
superior education programmes that benchmark the world-class level. On top of this,
the provision for well-designed training and all-round consultancy services brings
the Authority to new heights of success as thousands of our graduates and trainees
have benefited from them in possessing the long-coveted career development and
advancement in the industry.

This year, we are facing many opportunities arising of education reform and confronting
various sorts of challenges resulting from ever-changing market environment alongside
the increasing expectations from students. Last but not least, we must remain
undaunted to cope with the hot issue of sustainability.

Diversifying Training Demands

Being the key player as the training body in the fashion industry, we keep on staying
vigilant to ensure that the programmes and course structure impressively and perfectly
satisfy the need of the community through continuous review.

On students front, we commit to fulfil their expectations for moving up the education
ladder by providing the new BTEC HNC / HND in Fashion & Textiles in the 2012/13
academic year for DSE graduates. Through these programmes, students are well
equipped with knowledge relating to fashion production, promotion and product
development. Apart from them, a new sort of career-oriented programme, namely the
Technical Diploma in Apparel Design and Production is custom-made for secondary
school leavers.

Collaboration with Mainland Counterparts

Over the years, the Authority has been extending its services to Mainland counterparts.
To go even further, we harness collaboration with Mainland institution during the
year. By ways of consultancies and train-the-trainer programme, we dedicate to the
furtherance of training for fashion industry on the Mainland.
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In this respect, the collaboration with the Department of Textiles and Clothing
Manufacture of Huizhou University is worth mentioning. In the collaboration, the
Authority contributed by participating in offering the training programme for fashion
retailing as well as providing expertise and advice for management system and
curriculum development that really benefited the university.

Reinforcement of Industry Support

The Authority has taken various initiatives to develop new technologies and services
for the industry with the support from The Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and
Apparel (HKRITA) and Sustainable Development Fund (SDF). One shining examples
is SimFactory ™ - A Computerised Coaching System for Sewing Line Management,
which is a online coaching system enables frontline supervisors to learn “industrial
engineering” techniques and apply “what-if” analysis to predict the impacts of
decisions on various production issues.

Another worth mentioning project is the development of Continuous Improvement
Deployment (CID) Model by studying the distinctive characteristics of fashion
enterprises. The industry can effortlessly accomplish the deployment of continuous
process improvement by using refined Lean plus Six Sigma approach.

Concern for Sustainability

The growing concern of sustainability is, in fact, ramifying many aspects of the fashion
industry. At the forefront, viable business and industry posing the least adverse
environmental impact should be encouraged. In this regard, the Authority continues
to pursue for awareness on environmental issues. On one side, it is committed to
bolster the industry on the acknowledgement of carbon footprint by launching a project
called “Activity-based Carbon Footprint Modelling of the manufacturing processes of
Intimate Apparel Products”. The project aims to develop an activity-based carbon
footprint model to assess the carbon emission along the supply chain of intimate
apparels. Based on the assessment, opportunity for reducing the carbon emission can
be identified in achieving low-carbon manufacturing.

On the other side, the Authority strives to foster awareness of every stakeholder on the
environmental protection. To meet this end, the Authority and the US based Sustainable
Apparel Coalition (SAC) joined force to co-organize seminars introducing the Higg Index,
which is a tool to help organizations standardize methodology used to measure and
evaluate environmental and social performance of apparel products across the supply
chain.

Investing Manpower Resources

It must be mentioned that our staff have always been our most valuable assets. Their
unfailing support and hard work contribute to the success of the Authority this year.
The Authority keeps on investing our manpower resources by providing every staff
member job advancement and a promising career development pathway. Meanwhile,
the Authority will commit to fortify staff's challenge-coping capability by offering
job-related core competence training rendering our staff top-notch workforce in the
industry.

To this end, | must express my heartfelt thanks to the Chairman and Members of
the Authority for their commercial acumen and advice for me to steer the Authority.
Over the history, the Authority has overcome many challenges to become a vibrant
organization and a role model for vocational training for fashion industry in the Region.
| am confident that the Authority would certainly continue to prosper with the dedication
of our colleagues.

#%=F5 | Executive Director's Message ] ]
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Dr. Hon. LAM Tai-fai, Dr. CHAN Chun-tung, John Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger Mr. CHAN Wing-sun, Samuel

SBS, BBS, JP (Chairman)
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Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard Mr. CHUNG Kwok-pan, Felix Mr. FUNG Cheuk-wai, Daniel Mr. FUNG Wai-yiu, Willie
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Ms. HO Chi-ying, Sabina Mr. Lok Kee-loong, Richard Mr. NGO Wai-min, Ricky Ms. SIU Chui-fong
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Ms. Jenny SZETO Mr. TAM Chin-ming Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa Mr. Kevin YEUNG Mr. YOUNG Sheung-ching,
Clement
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HXEEL (XF)

Dr. Hon. LAM Tai-fai, SBS, BBS, JP (Chairman)
BEBFEHAEREEAR

representing the Hong Kong Woollen and Synthetic Knitting
Manufacturers’ Association Ltd.

PRiER 1§+

Dr. CHAN Chun-tung, John

BEBEIXELEEAR

representing the Federation of Hong Kong Industries

PRk REE
Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger
FEHOPEAR

representing The Hong Kong Exporters’  Association

PRk SESE
Mr. CHAN Wing-sun, Samuel
BERHEKRBEEAEREK

representing the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers Association Ltd.

BR3CfREE
Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard
BRHERELFENR

representing The Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers

EEREE
Mr. CHUNG Kwok-pan, Felix
BEEHEREHEENAER

representing The Chinese Manufacturers’  Association of Hong Kong

WEEEE
Mr. FUNG Cheuk-wai, Daniel
HBEEIREHTHSIRSE

nominated by the Executive Director of the Vocational Training Council

BREREEE
Mr. FUNG Wai-yiu, Willie
BERTBEELIENER

representing the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers Association Ltd.

fgaxt

Ms. HO Chi-ying, Sabina

TXEH5EFERNAK

representing the Director-General of Trade and Industry

EHEEXE

Mr. LOK Kee-loong, Richard
BEINRBHBRAUXREIRESEREK
representing the Textile and Clothing Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council

REW/EE

Mr. NGO Wai-min, Ricky
BEEEALOBEEERRAFRRRK
representing the Hongkong Knitwear Exporters & Manufacturers
Association Ltd.

mEFL
Ms. SIU Chui-fong
BIgRE

representing Trade Union

RlEmSEt

Ms. Jenny SZETO

BIRBEANREEWNERRE

representing the Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare

ERAKE
Mr. TAM Chin-ming
BERRELEBENAR

representing The Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers

ERExL
Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa
HEREEEAR

representing The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

BREEE
Mr. Kevin YEUNG
FEAE

Lay Member

BHIEXE

Mr. YOUNG Sheung-ching, Clement
BEINRBHBRAEXEIRESENRE
representing the Textile and Clothing Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council
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THE AUTHERITY
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BREIRBA1975F9R » KB T EIFR(BERENRBIKL o The Clothing Industry Training Authority was established by statute in

ZAEPIESETHIRB2BENT ¢ September 1975 according to the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance. The functions of the Authority as defined in Section 5 of the
Ordinance are:

1. ARERERHIRRE 1. to provide training courses for the clothing industry;

2. AIRBRERYREFITEINRS D 2. to establish and maintain industrial training centres;

3. BEIERIIRRENARE 3. to assist in the placement of persons completing our training courses;

4 BBREELESE - 4. to make recommendations with respect to the rate of levy.

JmBFEHTEREEARN The Authority shall consist of 17 members of

He A whom:

o EBENELATEMRANATE « Two shall be persons nominated by The Federation of Hong Kong Garment

o BRENBRELAERRENAME Manufacturers;

o BEINKBHBRENENRZEGMREENAWSE » Two shall be persons nominated by the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers

o EBIEBEMREENA-—F Association Ltd.;

o BREYEREHABMREMA—E = Two shall be persons nominated by the Textile and Clothing Training Board

o BREELBUHBERBUEMEBRNA—F of the Vocational Training Council;

o BREEOBEMERNA—F * One shall be a person nominated by the Federation of Hong Kong

o BRABGMRENA—F . Industries;

o EARRURIANESANBRISAEAHRENA-—F, e One shall be a person nominated by The Chinese Manufacturers'

o BEINXBHTHRSMREMA—E Association of Hong Kong;

o BREEHHORESERAAMEENA—E * One shall be a person nominated by the Hong Kong Woollen and Synthetic

o NBRAEME R Knitting Manufacturers' Association Ltd.;

o WHABMAERE FMEHBED THBHA—B = One shall be a person nominated by The Hong Kong Exporters' Association;
* One shall be a person nominated by The Hong Kong General Chamber of

Commerce;

* One shall be a person who holds office as an official of a trade union
which is registered in Hong Kong and connected with the clothing
industry;

e One shall be a person nominated by the Executive Director of the
Vocational Training Council;

* One shall be a person nominated by the Hongkong Knitwear Exporters &
Manufacturers Association Ltd.;

¢ Two shall be public officers; and

¢ One shall be a person, not being a public officer or person connected with
any of the organisations as mentioned above.

]4 Structure of the Authority | 314k B4E4S:
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To enable the Authority to better discharge its functions and achieve its
objectives, five committees were appointed from among its 17 members to
take responsibilities of specific functions. Committees were empowered to
co-opt any person whose professional advice is expected.

The Committees oversee specific issues that may affect the operation of
the Authority. The Authority held two meetings to deliberate its way forward
and set forth the related strategies to cope with future changes.

The Committees will continuously pledge to monitor the effectiveness of
allocation of resources and the efficiency of the operation of the Authority.
In the long run, the Committees aspire the Authority as a major change
agent to assist Hong Kong to become the fashion design, development and
trading hub in the Asia Pacific Region.

Committee on Finance

Dr. Hon. LAM Tai-fai, SBS, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Dr. CHAN Chun-tung, John

Mr. CHAN Wing-sun, Samuel

Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard

Mr. LOK Kee-loong, Richard

Mr. NGO Wai-min

Ms. Jenny SZETO

Terms of Reference:

1. To negotiate with the Government on loans for development;

2. To prepare annual estimates of income and expenditure;

3. To be responsible for the investment of the Authority's funds which are
not immediately required; and

4. To advise the Authority on any other financial matters referred to it by
the Authority.

Committee on Building Development

Mr. TAM Chin-ming (Chairman)

Dr. CHAN Chun-tung, John

Dr. Hon. LAM Tai-fai, SBS, BBS, JP
Mr. LOK Kee-loong, Richard

Ms. Jenny SZETO

Mr. Kevin YEUNG

Terms of Reference:

1. To negotiate with the Government on land grant for Training Centres;

2. To liaise with the architect responsible for the building of the Centres;
and

3. To be responsible for matters relating to the buildings after completion.

Z 8% | Committees
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Committee on Courses and Equipment

Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger

Mr. FUNG Cheuk-wai, Daniel

Ms. HO Chi-ying, Sabina

Mr. NGO Wai-min, Ricky

Ms. SIU Chui-fong

Ms. Jenny SZETO

Terms of Reference:

1. To decide the training courses to be run, necessary equipment and
materials to be purchased, and the disposal of finished products;

2. To be responsible for the efficient operation of the training courses;

3. To maintain the standard of instruction; and

4. To advise on and monitor the placement of trainees upon completion of
training courses.

Committee on Public Relations

Mr. CHUNG Kwok-pan, Felix(Chairman)
Mr. FUNG Wai-yiu, Willie

Ms. SIU Chui-fong

Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa

Mr. Kevin YEUNG

Mr. YOUNG Sheung-ching, Clement

Terms of Reference:

1. To make recommendations to the Authority on publicity programme;

2. To propose an estimate of expenditure for publicity;

3. On the advice of the Authority's Chairman, to initiate additional activities
as appropriate; and

4. To undertake such other activities as the Authority may direct.

Committee on Staff Establishment

Mr. FUNG Wai-yiu, Willie (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Wing-sun, Samuel

Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger

Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard

Mr. CHUNG Kwok-pan, Felix

Mr. TAM Chin-ming

Mr. YOUNG Sheung-ching, Clement

Terms of Reference:

1. To be responsible for staffing matters including the recruitment, salary
and other conditions of service for the Authority's staff;

2. To decide any other personnel matters; and

3. To negotiate, when necessary, with Government on the secondment of
officers from the civil service.
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Staff position at the year end is set out below:

At the year-end, there was 49 full-time staff working in the Authority. At
the same time, part of the full-time and part-time training programmes
were largely supported by 110 lecturers employed on a part-time basis.
Most of them were experts from the industry.

The Authority is supportive of staff development in a variety of activities
ranging from skills workshops, management seminars, to short courses and
academic programmes. Staff who pursued academic degrees received
partial sponsorship while those took part in training and professional
events received full sponsorship. During the year, a total of 34 staff
members benefited from the Authority's support for their participation in
around 34 programmes and activities.
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Executive Director
Manager

Senior Lecturer
Lecturer

Instructor

Technologist

Senior Project Officer
Project Officer

Project Assistant
Administrative Officer
Assistant Officer
Marketing/Programme Coordinator
Clerk

Technician

Office Support Assistant
Cleaner

Total

BE | Staff
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Administration Division
Manager
“... Mr. Michael Yeung, MPhil, MSc, MMgt

HRE
BE SIS
Executive Director
Prof. Philip K. W. Yeung, PhD

2EH
BEEE)
cececee Operation Division
Associate Director (Operation)

]8 BE | Staff
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. Human Resources & Administration

Academic Administration
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: Accounts 5 |.T. Development
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Building Services & Maintenance B Student Affairs & Course Promotion
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Industry Support - Training Activities

g 31 s i BETHER

Industrial Projects BB Apparel Business Management

e R LT s i 8 R B

Apparel Centre of Excellence B Design & Manufacture

EREEANE
Professional & Continuing Education
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Service Pledge Achievement in :
Target in 2013
2012

1 A\BERBEERE - TYRNEBE—RER - 93% 95%
Answer calls to enquiries hotlines within 5 rings, i.e. within 20 seconds.

2 R—ETERREEESHER - 95% 100%
Reply to email enquiries within one working day.

3 R—EITERREIRREHALZR / RTEBEEEEAEELEHEBE 100% 100%
B o

Refer specific enquiries on training programme admissions and/or industrial projects to
relevant staff concerned for handling within one working day.

4 REREREASELETUEIERA  BREERBHNHE 100% 95%
Reply to the applicants about the application results within 14 working days after the
application deadline.

5 REMBIEARNTRETZENEAERILHE 95% 100%
Process requests for making changes of the students’ personal particulars on the
training records within 3 working days.

6 REEIERRNEEEE R 100% 100%
Process complaints of students within 3 working days.

7 RZTEIERAKBENRFASHERBAES - 100% 100%
Release of investigation results of complaints to students within 28 working days.

8 REBEHBAERLEIERNRREZERES - 100% 100%
Process refunds of training fees to students within 7 working days after normal
notification.

9 REBIERARNBEIERES - 95% 95%

Re-issue of training certificates within 7 working days.

20 Performance Pledge | T{E&RMAFE
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A series of full-time programme was offered in 2012. Its targets are sub-
degree, diploma, advanced level and secondary graduates. The tuition fee of
each programme is summarised as follows:

Technical Diploma in Apparel Design and Production HK$26,000

| |
: Diploma in Apparel Merchandising HK$39,000 :
| Diploma in Fashion Design Studies HK$40,000 I
| BTEC HNC in Fashion & Textiles HK$38,000 |
| Bachelor of Business Administration in |
| Fashion Business HK$98,910 |
| BA Honours Fashion HK$207,900 |
: BA Honours Fashion Design, :
| Styling and Promotion HK$207,900 I
e = -

Placement service was provided for the full-time and part-time graduates.
The graduate survey showed that more than 60% of the full-time graduates
had continued to pursue full-time studies.

In 2012, 4,042 graduates / trainees completed the programmes at the
Authority. The number of graduates / trainees of each programme is
summarised as follows:

B3/ BAAR
REH NUMBER OF GRADURATES / COURSE CLASSIFICATION
TRAINEES

Full-time Training Programmes
Apparel Business Management Courses
Design and Manufacture Courses

Special Commissioned Courses

Part-time Training Programmes
Short Courses

One-year Diploma Programmes

Modular Certificate/Diploma Courses

Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus for Wearing Apparels
and Textile Sector

Corporate Training Programmes

Seminars/Workshops

25 | Trainees 2]



| BETEE

| Student Activities

BAERU—ATAREESAESUHER  EFEH
BESREYRFNMERE BEERRAAESEE -

S AP EMELE R EESFER BRI R

ERMAL  ROEBEERLUEEE  BMEMNEE

AREMNACHNER  BERCERERBEBEHENGE
Hil o

Through the Student Union, students could join diverse activities which
include team spirit development; leadership skills development and building
up of rapport between students and teachers.

Moreover, with the cooperation with Wofoo Social Enterprises, CITA-Wofoo
Leaders’ Network (CITA-WLN) was set up to encourage our students to

participate in social affairs and to nurture them to be virtue, moral young
leaders.

22 Trainees | 28
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| Breakdown of Full-time Programmes Graduates by Age

21m B UL
Aged 21 or above:

31%

17-215% -
Aged between 17 and 21:

69%

2HHFHREEXZENEER
Distribution of Full-time Programmes Graduates by Employment

FhEE
Employed

32%

e
Further Study

63%
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Outstanding Performance Award
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2B fZLeung Hiu Tung T ZEEWong Yik Kei

BAKE HER R HBRFRRATREHER R
Diploma in Apparel Merchandising Diploma in Knitwear Fashion Design and Merchandising
&0 AR 75 8%

Service Award

#BEXiao Long

BIKE BB IUR

Diploma in Apparel Merchandising

SR{E HKwok Wai Shan Winnie

HARERRTREHEB R

Diploma in Knitwear Fashion Design and Merchandising
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SDC International Design Competition 2012
Champion of Hong Kong Area

Cher Carman Chan
Bachelor of Arts (Honor) in Fashion

Cher's work was inspired by a cloth that was bought by her relatives from
Yunnan. The cloth was dyed by a traditional Chinese dyeing technique —
knot dyeing. She applied this concept into her design to enable more
people could realise about traditional Chinese Artwork. The earth at the
center of the dyed cloth brings out the message of “love the earth” and
“environmental protection” . Cher said that she faced a lot of difficulties
during the whole process, as she did not learn about dyeing. Luckily, the
pieces could finish nicely with the guidance from the lecturers. Cher also
thanked the Executive Director of the Authority for his help to look for the
production sponsorship so that the final product could be produced.

25 | Trainees 25
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Full-time Training Programmes

Based on the new education system, the Authority launched a series of full-
time programmes in 2012 to meet the needs of the market. Besides the
programmes developed for secondary and advanced level graduates, a new
Technical Diploma programme is designed to train associate-professionals
for the industry.

Technical Diploma in Apparel Design and
Production

This programme is designed to provide students with a basic understanding
of the fashion industry in Hong Kong and mainland China. It also develops
the practical skills required for apparel design and production as well as
students’ ability in communication, selling and negotiation. Graduates are
expected to be well-prepared to pursue careers in product development,
sample and pattern making as well as merchandising.

Diploma in Apparel Merchandising

This programme is designed to equip students with necessary apparel
merchandising technique, fabric knowledge, different types of garment
production, pattern making, fashion design, merchandising management,
cost accounting, marketing, information technology and import and export
practice. It strengthenes students in the areas of sourcing, planning and
marketing so that students will have all-around foundation.

Diploma in Fashion Design Studies

This programme is jointly organised by the Authority and the Li Ka Shing
Institute of Professional and Continuing Education of the Open University of
Hong Kong (OUHK). It is designed to provide students with fundamental
fashion design knowledge and skills as well as generic skills for employment
and further study. It also helps students develop ability to identify fashion
trends and apply basic aesthetic judgment and creativity in fashion design
and evaluation.
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BTEC HNC in Fashion & Textiles

This Higher National Certificate (“HNC”) programme is developed by
Edexcel in UK and the Authority. Student can apply for a UK top-up degree
programme after completing the HNC and HND programmes. By attending
this programme, students are able to acquire knowledge and skills in
fashion design and production, promotion and finance, product development
and running a small business.

Bachelor of Business Administration in Fashion
Business

Hong Kong was transformed to knowledge-based economy years ago. To
meet the challenges and opportunities in a rapid changing global
environment, the demand on well trained fashion business professionals is
very high. Therefore, the Authority, in collaboration with the Lee Shau Kee
School of Business and Administration of the OUHK, offers the Bachelor of
Business Administration in Fashion Business programme.

This two-year top-up degree programme is designed to train students with
professional business management knowledge and capabilities in order to
enhance the global competitiveness of Hong Kong fashion industry.
Students were required to complete a number of core courses that provide
them fundamental knowledge in business management. They should
proceed to specialisation courses relevant to the fashion business so as to
deepen their understanding of the industry's operations and broaden their
international acumen. Besides lectures, a number of seminars and
industrial visits are organised for the students in order to widen their
horizon and enriching their leaning experience.

BA Honours Fashion
BA Honours Fashion Design, Styling and
Promotion

These programmes are jointly organised by the Authority, the Li Ka Shing
Institute of Professional and Continuing Education of OUHK and Middlesex
University from UK. They are designed to nurture a group of excellent
fashion designers and the team members at the back stage. Throughout
the three-year programmes, students are required to plan and organise a
small fashion show, and to have internship training in fashion or clothing
companies. The students also have chance to exhibit their works at the
graduation fashion show at the final year of the programmes. Designers or
practitioners of high renown are invited as guest lectures to deliver talks so
that the students could learn more about the operation of the industry.

FI#RIEE | Training Programmes 27
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Special Commissioned Programmes

The Authority cooperates with the Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional and
Continuing Education of OUHK in offering Yi Jin Diploma programmes. The
programmes include Fashion Design, Fashion Image and Styling as well as
Comic and lllustration Arts. The Authority mainly teaches relevant modules
of these programmes.

ERB Placement-tied Course

The Authority offered placement-tied course with the Employees Retraining
Board (“ERB”) in 2012. The full-time course mainly covers the clothing and
textile discipline. The service target groups are unemployed secondary
graduates. The students are equipped with knowledge and skills required
by the industry. Placement and follow-up services are provided for the
graduates to ensure that they are able to find jobs and adapt to the markets.

A series of part-time programmes was offered by the Authority in 2012.
They mainly cover the disciplines of fashion design, merchandising,
pattern making, apparel and textile technology, 3D modeling, footwear
design and manufacturing as well as knitwear studies. The students are
mainly in-service personnel and interested candidates. By taking these
programmes, students could upgrade their knowledge and skills as well as
qualifications in relevant disciplines.

Master of Arts Work Based Learning Studies
(Fashion)

In collaboration with the Middlesex University, UK, the Authority offers
the Master of Arts Work Based Learning Studies (Fashion) in Hong Kong
for the fashion professionals or relevant in-service personnel. This
programme aims to realise students’ potential by using innovative
methods to develop knowledge and skills they gain through the design
and implementation of real-life work based learning project. It is
especially beneficial for students who wish to combine higher education
with professional development. The first intake students are main senior
executives and merchandisers.
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BSc (Hons) International Clothing Technology
and Design

In collaboration with the Authority, this undergraduate programme is
offered by the Manchester Metropolitan University (MMU), UK in Hong
Kong. It was re-named as BA (Hons) International Fashion Practice in late
2012. This two-year part-time top up degree programme was designed
to create highly employable fashion graduates with flexible vocational
skills and a holistic knowledge spanning business, design and product
development. Graduates will be accessible to the Master's degree
programmes. The programme was accredited by The Textile Institute,
UK. Graduates of the programme will become Chartered Technologists at
Associate level (CText ATI).

Advanced Diploma

The Authority and Hong Kong Institution of Textile and Apparel (HKITA)
jointly organise three professional recognised programmes, namely
Advanced Diploma in Knitwear Studies and Merchandising, Advanced
Diploma in Apparel Studies and Merchandising and Advanced Diploma
in Fashion Design. These programmes are designed to further enhance
students’ professional textile and clothing knowledge theoretically and
practically. Students are hence trained to be more competitive and
professional. Advanced Diplomas would be conferred by the authority and
HKITA if students have successfully completed the stipulated modules and
got passing grades in HKITA professional examinations.

Graduates may apply bachelor’s or master's degree programmes so as to
advance their academic qualification. Advanced Diploma holder could be
admitted as the Licentiate Member of HKITA and take the HKITA Graduate
Diploma examination in Apparel Merchandising and Marketing.

Diploma Scheme in Fashion and Textile Studies

This diploma programme provides an entry route for those secondary
graduates and those who are interested in fashion and textiles
professions. The study mode of this programme is flexible. It has multiple
entry and exit points. By completing one mandatory module, three core
modules and two elective modules, student would obtain a certificate.
Students would be awarded a diploma after obtaining three certificates or
completing eighteen modules. This program also provides a stepping stone
for the graduates to study advanced diploma programmes offered by the
authority.
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One Year Diploma in 3D Apparel Design and
Pattern Making

One Year Diploma in 3D Apparel Design and Pattern Making is one of the
reimbursable courses under the Continuing Education Fund. It is specially
designed for sample makers, pattern makers, merchandisers and fashion
designers to enhance their technical skills and professional knowledge in
design concept, pattern making, 3D modelling and apparel production.

Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus

The Skills Upgrading Scheme Plus (SUS Plus) aims to boost the
employability and competitiveness of workers with low level of skills
and qualification, via obtaining the latest skills and knowledge. The
Authority offered three SUS Plus programmes in 2012: Module Certificate
in Pattern Design and Fundamental Modelling Techniques for Pattern
Making (Top), Module Certificate in Pattern Design and Fundamental
Modelling Techniques for Pattern Making (Bottom), and Module Certificate
in Advanced Pattern Design and Modelling Techniques for Pattern Making.
The course fees are subsidised by the Employees Retraining Board.

Short Courses

The Authority offers a series of non-award bearing short courses for in-
service personnel and interested candidates. No specific requirement
is set for this series of courses. The courses covers a range of areas
including apparel business, technical skills and design.

Certificate in Clothing Industry — Self Study

Certificate in Clothing Industry is an award bearing self-study programme.
The learning mode is flexible. Besides self study, it is supplemented with
tutorials. It mainly covers areas of technical skills and knowledge. By
taking this programme, students could upgrade their knowledge and skills.
Students would obtain a certificate after completing 8 modules in 30
months

Certificate in Footwear

The Authority offered a new footwear programme in 2012. There are
two specialisations — Footwear Manufacturing and Footwear Design. By
completing the core module, “Practical Shoemaking” and one elective
module selected from “Footwear Manufacturing” or “Footwear Design”,
the graduates would be conferred “Certificate in Footwear (Manufacturing

Technology)” or “Certificate in Footwear (Design)”.



B R EFIRE Summer Fashion Technology Courses

ERTLOHERE TEEHFERAHHEY R - X Because many secondary and post-secondary students need to upgrade

Bt REREENEN > IKBERBBEAMRT ~EZH their technical skills in sewing, shoemaking, knitwear design and pattern

FIEHIRE - THRERER EEWRAHBKEREME  design, the authority offers six full-time short courses during summer

BE ° vacation. By completing these courses, students could enhance their
practical and technical skills.
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I Corporate Training Programmes

ARAEBEBREEEEKERCENES D IES To enhance the competiveness of the organisations and companies in
B TZRIAAERARGEEESTENSH R R DX fashion, service and relevant industries, the Authority organises various
FEHIERE - R2012%F - JIHEBE G AUTHBIRMEMSZEE  types and areas of short term and long term tailor-made corporate training

sl for them. In 2012, the Authority provided training for the following
organisations or companies:

o WIFBEB)BRAA « Afasia Fashions (HK) Ltd

o BENLEBRAT « Esquel Enterprises Ltd

o ZERMNGCEEEREMERAT « Finemay Fashion Enterprise Management Consultant Limited

o JBEGEBRAT « Glorious Sun Enterprises (BVI) Limited

o BRABBHE « Hong Kong Correctional Services

o BRARBEELER + Hong Kong Institute of Technology

o BHERLF « Marks & Spencer (Asia Pacific) Limited

o AlEEHRE « Toi Shan Association College

e BEEHNE)BRARE « VF Asia Limited

2012 BN REERE ¢ Training offered in 2012 was:

c ERHREZEEEBEAENOEEZEHEERERE « Advanced Psychological Well-being and Professional Skill Training for

o ShirtStopE R EEZEEEER T Middle Management of Retailing Industry

o EMERERMAR CGEeRER KR + Advanced Tailor-made Retail Management Training for ShirtStop

o EBF AREMERET « Advanced Technical Fashion Knowledge (Colour problems and Factory

o AR evaluation)

o BRMAHH M R FEIG « Basic Fashion Design

o BRI BT A0 R S S + Denim Washing

o RIRIEESEAE R - Effective Negotiation Tactics and Skills

o IHENREBEHEMBERE « Fundamental Technical Fashion Knowledge

o BETH « Generic Product Knowledge Training for Frontline Sales

o RIAREEESERAMBIEI « Maintenance and Repairing of Various Kinds of Sewing Machines

o BEMAREE GBI « Practical Shoemaking

o HBERMmEFTML «+ Product Knowledge Training for Frontline Sales

o [HE{LEE - BPRE] 53 « Product Knowledge Training of Savile Row

o BEIRBHEREFHIE + Quality Evaluation for Knit Products

« Training on "Strengthening Communication While Maintaining Stability"
« Tailor-made Training for International Talented Fashion Buyers
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I Seminar and Workshop

HIEETE E01.0 The Higg Index 1.0

AFEREHE (SAC) RESHBORREMERR The Sustainable Apparel Coalition (SAC) is an industry-wide group of over
M TER - HER - FE FIA ST 3 BT A S5 80 leading apparel and footwear brands, retailers, suppliers, nonprofits,
BHoHMEFHUNIERZHNRENEHEERYRE and NGOs working to reduce the environmental and social impacts of
Mt gg Lo apparel and footwear products around the world.

MESHEVNERSRITIEEREEREMEEETR  The focus of SAC is to create and implement The Higg Index to measure the

HEBEENLSNEE . WBIEHE-—ETEREBH®ZER  environmental and social performance of apparel and footwear products.

PG ENFTEREEREE/HEEENRRKTE - The Higg Index 1.0 is a tool to help organisations standardise how they
measure and evaluate environmental performance of apparel products
across the supply chain at the brand, product and facility levels.

MBEIIEBERTNE  EUNBRIEHTE RS SAC and the Authority joined together to organise seminars introducing the
R AE o Higg Index to Hong Kong Textiles and Apparel Industry.

1y

o W o
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HHZEeEREE  FERBEEBO,ERIKBLEE  This conference is co-hosted by Society of Dyers and Colourists (SDC) UK in
WHARARER BEFTEEPABRITERAFNIT AR partnership with SDC Hong Kong and the Authority. The Conference focused

B » EEELE on innovative approaches and case studies in the industry, topics include:
FEREZCHNBE Coloration challenges old and new by Prof. Martin Bide, University of
7218 B KE Martin BideZ % Rhode Island
RIFN G EERE Innovations in Textile Coloration by Dr. Sanjiv Kamat, President of
HEZEREE® £/F SanjivKamat {HL Society of Dyers and Colourists, UK
REEREEHCGNERR Fashioning Colour Responsibly — Practice in Esquel by
HEEE FRAE RASLE Mr. Yugao Zhang, R & D Director of Esquel Group

20123 B ESE MR ABELRER2012 CSIEE K#  The Grand Final of the SDC International Design Competition 2012 and CSI
NESREREBET Colour Award 2012 was also held after the conference.
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\ TEXRIER

IRFEEERTER BEATENRERMARZ - B
EENBEBRRMZERYE  BURAEXEEZRTS

NBFES -

BEZHTERATENEENZMAE - IREF R
RECEEBFAZEHANEXRSE  AEENARS
EoURTWEENBRALTER  ERMANTFELEEN
ReF » ZMEREREE -

SEMNEYIER B

o BBATRIBAE
o RAEMBRBREROBFNEER
o HAENKEIEHERME

The Authority offers professional industry consultancy and technical
support services to assist the industry to sustain its competitive edge in the
global market.

With in-depth industry knowledge and technical expertise, the Authority
and enterprises often work together to create an innovative industry
thinking, forward-looking organisation methods and quantifiable solutions
that enable our customers to meet a variety of daunting challenges.

This year’s key projects included:

e  Six Sigma Knowledge Enhancement

* Competitiveness Enhancement for Department of Textiles and Clothing
Manufacture of a renowned University

* Research on Management of New Generation Staff
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I Project Funded by the Innovation and Technology Fund

SimFactory - NIKEEHZKEENE
JRE B R 45

AIEBEERMB —ELERIRAL  FAREEAE
BE[IXIR] WRGUREERSBEZENHERE
TER [BRESN | REBAZERENSE -

EREIRUENEERE  EREESENREEA
ERUBEWEEFEMEGARE  fMKEREAD
R D HRBBRS R -

EZRANEmFRER R EFEE

FEENEERER —EARERNEXERBRE TR
B BUTHRARERERRERENRR » EHEE
HEBHRERS  LAERRFEES -

HEERERARERNANERIIRESR  KWEHE
HER UHBENEAERMEST  BEREME
X ETOMANER o

BRI EBRENREFREELR » VEARBLEBE
BEERNEEMEMRANE  FEFEESAREED
BERER -

SimFactory — A Computerised Coaching
System for Sewing Line Management

The project aims to develop a sewing line coaching system that enables
frontline supervisors to learn “industrial engineering” techniques and
apply “what-if” analysis to predict the impacts of various decisions in
rapid changing business environment.

Based on data collected from real factories, virtual sewing line will be
simulated such that frontline managers and supervisors could learn the
production planning and control process so as to identify the optimal
solutions of manpower and machine allocations.

Activity-based Carbon Footprint Modelling of the
manufacturing processes of Intimate Apparel Products

The project aims to develop an activity-based carbon footprint model to
reveal the carbon emission of the manufacturing processes of intimate
apparel so that carbon reduction opportunities can be identified for the
development of low carbon competitive advantages.

The gathered carbon footprints of common intimate apparel products will
be consolidated in an industrial specific database. A customised computer
program will be built to analyse and report the carbon footprints.

This innovative and practical approach, together with the comprehensive
database and customised computer program will allow maximal flexibility
and cost effectiveness in carbon footprint disclosure that fits the
characteristics and demand of today’ s intimate apparel industry.
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I Project Funded by the Innovation and Technology Fund

EANRENERABRBELIIR  Enhancing the Low Carbon Competitive Advantage
HEBREHEHEANEEISFIMNIE  across the Manufacturing Sector of the Hong Kong

it HEE Apparel Supply Chain through Effective Carbon

Disclosure & Carbon Emission Reduction
BEREAEHRBRETENTERERLZ— BEHE Hong Kong, as one of the major sourcing hubs of the global apparel industry,
REERE © shall strive to achieve low carbon manufacturing.

S EEENTEEERYCHEEN S L EREEAHE & The main goal of this project is to develop appropriate methodologies to
BMBERE %¢'J\¢¥Iﬁ:¥f$ﬂ7ﬁ¥§ CEmMM acquire knowledge, experience and best practices for SME factories to
MEY BERMBEESEEZNBRET ;B EHBEEANM  assess and understand their product carbon footprint; effective disclose
2 EBEVERBREENREED - their product carbon footprint; identifying carbon emission reduction

opportunities and action to build their low carbon competitive advantages.
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SECRETARIAT

VICES

WE B AR5

I!Jll %E]%L/LT%E}'E{A?%E/JM‘ETE'EE% |
| The Authority offers professional secretariat services to the following organisations: |

GAFTI

BEEGERREES
Hong Kong Institution of Textile and Apparel

BECESARRBEAH -—MHTEAFABRACEXBENHBARBRCELABN YT  Z2E
BEMMETEREUSABRRAZ WAL - BEEHRL - ZERARRKESREBRERER
ROBMEEHSERCNBENEERE  SRECXFERRBBETALE —ERFTHRSHEAR
REREREEASEREBENTE  EMAXNBETEEREBRNELE -

Sustainable Fashion Business Consortium (SFBC) is a group of Hong Kong based companies in the textile
and apparel sector committed to promoting and increasing the use of sustainable practices across the
fashion supply chain. With the pressing issue of global warming, air and water pollution, and the ever
increase of waste disposal pits, SFBC has a vision to create a platform to continuously improve textile
and apparel manufacturing processes and procedures throughout the supply chain in order to minimise
the industry’ s impact on the environment.

PHEREERFBREFCAFTNRLRFLEHETED  RED  RERD  REMEN
REFBRE - ARERKERE 8 BETEARGE-NWEE MEEZESTEFHEMNE
REEFE o GAFTIN B RRBEREMME - MO TE-REBERZA ~ B 1L 3 5 1R 88 A0 B 428 0
BE > ERETRESEEUEMEHIRG -

Global Apparel, Footwear and Textile Initiative (GAFTI) is an initiative to bring retailers, brands, mills and
factories together to improve efficiencies and set standards globally. Because there is no single source
of standards, there is a lack of standardisation in the apparel, textile, and footwear industry. This gap
creates conflicting requirements across customers. GAFTI’s goal is to reduce complexity and remove
costs from common industry practices and prevent increased scrutiny from press and governments,
which could lead to increased regulation.

H—MEARSMANBOALTIEAR  RERERREASENSEMAFEREXER - M
ZIRSABHHAARTENTRE L > BDRBEEZEM -

The Institution was established by some ardent and professional people from the Industry to maintain
and improve the academic and professional standards of its members, so as to improve the
competitiveness of the industry and to prosper the economy of Hong Kong.

MWEEMRF | Secretariat Services 37




NDEPENDENT

UDITERS
REPGRT

B ZEMREE

R EIRB
) &

(AT &% 3

R

ISl Z8
(RETEIR (BRE) KAEEBRIL)

AEHE (ULTERE [RMA] ) EBXIEANEIBER
68EARKINRB O B®RE - KPBHREER2012
FI2AANEEEBREBEZALFENZE KRS
RO REEZBRNRSAER URFTESHBEERME
KA TR E R

IR B I T HRRAAENSE

TR (HRE) REARENREBAREHEZREF
EXRERCHE  UHRHOFIRFUIREEREE
B REEBEAATERNIBERR  RESIRFR

RULBNAEABEE  UBERMBBRRTEFERARNK
HEF AN EVE N30

BB EE

BEMHNEERRERMNBLYZEYBRRFLER
R-RMBRREFBENRBIER  ERBBRER
& oo BRUELSN - RFIMREE A BEEMAE - HM
BARABEENAR  HEANEMATETHAEE
rEfF -

EMERBEEBSHMASHANE BRI LERENTE
o BUEERBERRMETERRA  LRIARANTE
B UAEREREHBRERESTEEEMEKRER

BRt o
ERSRUTEFUENERYBREABATEARBE
ERNERIRE o FTEE A2 Fr BUR IO 4% BAM B9 ) & -

BEFEERRFRERMEFMBEREREFEERER
PR R R - AR EZEERE  RBEEEEZEE
FRRABIL NP 25 BB HRAABEHARPEZE - UL
RAEENERRERF - EAF/HERBHRINEZNR

38 Independent Auditors’ Report | B % EfhikE =

To the members of Clothing Industry Training
Authority (the "Authority")

(Established in Hong Kong under the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Clothing Industry Training
Authority set out on pages 38 to 68, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Authority's responsibility for the financial
statements

The Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance requires the Authority
to maintain proper accounts and records of all income and expenditure and
to prepare financial statements comprising income and expenditure and
assets and liabilities of the Authority that give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Authority determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements



BERRER - ERNEBEFEINRFARAMNEZEIHE  that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are

HNEBEMRFAEENS AN EEM - LURFEER I appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

MERPEEIRS R o opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Authority, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

EFEE BMUMESHEXRERREREZENEEMAR We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

MHERERIEHER - appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
== -
=5 Opinion

BARE  ZSEVERRCRETBYHEREERESE  In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the

MAFith KRR FTHR2012F12831 BEBKM T KB state of the Authority's affairs as at 31 December 2012, and of its deficit

LHZBLEEENEBEMNBESRE  WERBITEIEH ( and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong

BXE) ROINEBEERIZABRS - Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance.

=R ERNST & YOUNG

BEHESTHA Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

201348 22H 22 April 2013

CRECHERNEREXER BRI HE -
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[
I STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Year ended 31 December 2012 !

e
|
| B eE 2012 2011
| Notes BT BT
HK

I $ HK$
| WA INCOME
| AR AR Gross training levy 636,661 876,221
[ R EBEEHREA Less: Collection fee charged by Customs (65,055) (74,107)
| and Excise Department
I 571,606 802,114
|

RITFE ank interest income 5,884 3,252
| iR Bank interest
: BIIFRRE Receipts from training courses 11,595,041 14,134,833
| THEIEBWA Industrial project income 3,544,967 3,539,802
| B Government grants 3 611,883 426,659
| BREWA Dividend income 5,652,622 4,420,180
| FEERA Sundry income 337,249 340,178
|
| 22,319,252 23,667,018
| =M EXPENDITURE
| ERE Audit fee 141,000 135,000
o irm Depreciation 5 1,455,274 1,756,350
: SEER Expenses on publicity 382,591 448,205

—RRATHRE X General administrative expenses 3,524,692 3,068,245
| »

T¥EEMX Industrial project expenses 3,247,428 2,422,021
|
| EIIREEAE Lecture fee on training courses 1,781,033 1,859,418
| BIMmK Staff costs 12,892,657 13,538,013
| B A Training costs 525,009 924,340
| wenx BERRE Loss on disposal of items of property, plant 7,232 256,223
| 518 and equipment
|
| 23,956,916 24,407,815
: XEESR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR (1,637,664) (740,797)
| :
| Hib2E I /(H18) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

A HERKIREGESZE  Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments 25,406,460 (23,994,000)

|
| FREMEENE /(FE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
I (BH81%) THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 25,406,460  (23,994,000)
|
| AEEMHREKE(K5E)  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 23,768,796  (24,734,797)
|
|
|
|
|
L —_ e e e
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MiEE 2012 2011
Notes BT BT
HK$ HK$
FERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 5 7,315,824 8,519,767
AHHERARE Available-for-sale investments 6 119,753,900 92,927,000
EREEELEE Total non-current assets 127,069,724 101,446,767
WENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEWIRER Accounts receivable 7 2,731,999 2,294,227
FENFE - RERHEAM Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FEWIRER 8 665,727 1,079,676
RERALEEER Cash and cash equivalents 9 9,972,489 10,978,305
REEEHE Total current assets 13,370,215 14,352,208
REBAR CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE(SIRTR Accounts payable 10 290,470 122,845
HibESRARETEA Other payables and accruals 11 4,548,513 3,843,970
REE B85 Total current liabilities 4,838,983 3,966,815
MENEE R NET CURRENT ASSETS 8,531,232 10,385,393
HERH Net assets 135,600,956 111,832,160
& RESERVES
LB General reserve 12 41,165,352 42,803,016
AEEERARESLAME  Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve 94,435,604 69,029,144
E4E ] Total reserves 135,600,956 111,832,160
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[
I STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Year ended 31 December 2012 !

o
|
| A ER A & E kR BB
| REELHE General reserve  Total reserves
| Available-for-sale
| Investment

revaluation
| reserve
| BT BT BT
| HK$ HK$ HK$
: M211E181H At 1 January 2011 93,023,144 43,543,813 136,566,957
| FREE Deficit for the year - (740,797) (740,797)
| FRHMEEERER Other comprehensive loss for the year:
| A ERAIEE[E  Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
| HE investments (23,994,000) - (23,994,000)
|
[ FEREZEER Total comprehensive loss for the year (23,994,000) (740,797) (24,734,797)
|
| 72011812 831 BHX At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012
| 2012F181H 69,029,144 42,803,016 111,832,160
: FAEE Deficit for the year - (1,637,664) (1,637,664)
| FREMEERE : Other comprehensive income for the year:
| AHEERERE Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
| BEZH investments 25,406,460 - 25,406,460
|
| FRMEEUWE (KE)  Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 25,406,460 (1,637,664) 23,768,796
: A2012F 12 B 31 B At 31 December 2012 94,435,604 41,165,352 135,600,956
|
| MBI EINR (REKE) % JIRENESRY Under the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance, the funds
| EBFEOBRIFEIR (BWKE) KHFE27Q4%EE and property of the Authority shall consist of (i) subject to section
| BRES - BB HITEREBUT S 48 AT WE R 27(2) of the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance, all
| RKRHMNE (ii)ﬁllﬁﬁﬁiﬁi@ﬁt%ﬂ EX - 88y~ amounts of levy and surcharge collected by the Commissioner of
| EBEA- - HEeERFEFERIN ; (||| ) E A Customs and Excise Department of the Government of the Hong Kong
| ||£§)%$—:ﬁ‘3’c1t lliﬁﬁhﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂmsﬁﬁ K &2 &R Special Administrative Region; (i) any moneys received by the
| B RIWIIRBAEBEWMmEEWBIMEEE  Authority by way of grants, loans, donations, fees, rent or interest;
| {m,%xla};zﬁj?e_ o (iii) all moneys derived from the sales of any property held by or on
| behalf of the Authority; and (iv) all other moneys and property
| lawfully received by the Authority for its purposes.
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
L i _
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I STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Year ended 31 December 2012 :

9,972,489 10,978,305

r--——-—-—-—-—-—-"—" —-"\ "\ "\ "\ —"—"—"—-"—"—"—"—"—"—"—"—"—"—" —— — — — — — A
| |
| B 5 2012 2011 |
| Notes BT BT |
| HK$ HK$ |
| EEEEMERekE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES I
| AFEER Deficit for the year (1,637,664) (740,797) |
| AR Adjustments for: |
| RITFSBA Bank interest income (5,884) 3,252 |
| AHHERARENRE Dividend income from available-for-sale |
| BA investments (5652622) (4,420,180 |
| HEME  BERRE Loss on disposal of items of property, plant |
| 218 and equipment 5 7,232 256,223 |
| E Depreciation 5 1,455,274 1,756,350 |
| (5,833,664) (3,151,656) |
| FEUWRIRROR A / (3810) Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable (437,772) 696,365 |
| TR - MERHMMEY  Decrease in prepayments, deposits and |
| IR TR 2 other receivables 413,949 111,869 |
| FEMRIIG M / CRA) Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 167,625 (69,525 |
| HittERFAR R ETEA Increase/(decrease) in other payables and |
| i/ GAL) accruals 704,543 (1,344,121) |
| REEBKANRRE Net cash flows used in operating activities (4,985,319) (3,757,068) |
| REFE |
: REXEMREAERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
BAWE - MEKRMEIEE  Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 5 (258,563) (392787) |

l 2WFIE Interest received 5,884 3252 |
: DUR AT HERAFRERI S Dividends received from available-for-sale investments 13 4,232,182 4,420,180 |
| REEKFBES Net cash flows from investing activities 3,979,503 4,030,645 |
| REFE |
| BeRREGSEEH NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND :
| @/ GRD) =@ CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,005,816) 23577
: FURERES Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,978,305 10,704,728 |
Z{EIBH |

: FRASRRASE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END |
| FERE OF YEAR 9,972,489 10,978,305 |
| HeRBE&SEER ANALYSIS OF BALANGES OF CASH AND |
| RRSw CASH EQUIVALENTS :
: RERIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 9 8,263,066 9,274,343 |
BARREIEAE DR Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity |

: 51)51 Egﬂtﬂ*? of less than three months when acquired 9 1,709,423 1,703,962 |
| E/Hﬁﬁm)\ |
| |
| |
| |
I |
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I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 December 2012 :

1. 2FF#H
HIRB RIS TESE (RRE) EHIREBRIMFE
2FAR  HEITHELHRUNERENERE B
FREETRASTEIERAL - BEERIGEREMN
ABRERABEEEHES o

21 IRBEE

FHBREDIZREBE T ASEANTBERBRE
Y28 ( “HKFRSs™ ) (BE [EBBBHREEL] - [&
BEFTEER ] ( "HKASs” ) RFER) -~ BEARSFRA
RI#ER (HKE) ROANKEBRMER - NP
BRDMBELLAESMER - ETEHERSTRKRE
BAAEFTERIERSD o AP BI|MRTILGET RS -

22 B RREB R KR
FAREE R FE MR BIRERA T # 8 R AEER]
NEBR B ELER

EBPBMEERE 158 (BRTA)
ERUBMEERE 1 5 [ EARNE BYHHEER
BERERR IS EXRAE B ELE AR &5

ERUBMEERE 758 (BRIA)
ERUBBMEERNE 7S (2H LA KE 2HEE
] WA

EREERE 125 (BFTA)
EREEANE 1258 [HrEH BEHE - 1HEEELN
W | BIERT

RAMIEREETNE BB REEREM I HRR LI
REPBENTHETE  REFERRLZEAENSE
BUREE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Authority is established in Hong Kong under the Industrial Training (Clothing
Industry) Ordinance. The Authority is a not-for-profit organisation and its principal
activities are to provide training courses for the clothing industry, establish
and maintain industrial training centres, assist in the placement of persons
completing training courses and make recommendations with respect to the rate
of levy.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ( “HKFRSs” ) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ( “HKASs” )
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ( “HKICPA” ), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for available-for-sale investments which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ( “HK$” ).

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Authority has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements and there have been no significant changes
to the accounting policies applied in these financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Authority has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Government Loans’

HKFRS 7 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’

HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements’®

HKFRS 11
Joint Arrangements®

HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 — Transition
Guidance’

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
— Investment Entities®

HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement®

HKAS 1 Amendments
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income'

HKAS 19 (2011)
Employee Benefits®

HKAS 27 (2011)
Separate Financial Statements®
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 28 (2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures®

HKAS 32 Amendments
Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine®

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in June 2012

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

% Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Authority is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Authority considers

that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Authority’s results of operations and financial position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises.



20 FEEHBIREIE (#) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ELFBEE] & Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

BEEHE B STHEERE N RE R ZAIC BRI EE An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
BRBEEZERD - WMEBEEENR - AIFEMEETTR is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
E£5 - RIAUEEEENTNE SRR HIRE or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
5 SRZAIERNEREEREBENFRO - HE estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
ESEASRHBIFEYEMNZEEERIBELE if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
EEMNREE (KNBREAINE) - BEARERSEST amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
ABFWERA © would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss

been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

REAL Related parties
ETIERT > BEALKEREIIKREERE : A party is considered to be related to the Authority if:
@ BAREEBEZVNRERKES  BZEBAL (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person
() EEHHEEESINRS (i) has control or joint control over the Authority;
(i) ATEFISRBRMEBEBARLES | (i) has significant influence over the Authority; or
(i) BIKEHEF D ANEREEAS ; (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Authority or of a
parent of the Authority;
=% or
() BEALIFETIER2— 2B : (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
() ZEEHEIREAR-—KEZHE ; (i) the entity and the Authority are members of the same group;
iy —BREAZ BREIBHEATRARGELE (H3 (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
—BEZ8AF  WEARSERKEAR) ; parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
(i) ZEREIKFEAEERE= T 2881t ; (iii) the entity and the Authority are joint ventures of the same third party;
(v —BEAME=SEE2EELE HE-EEA (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
E=RFBREEE X associate of the third entity;
(v) ZERAIRESE)REEEE ERARES (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
BAITMR 2 ZEEEANEIKE ; of either the Authority or an entity related to the Authority;
(vi) 2B A (a) FTFIER 2 (B A Pl E 2 | (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
and
(ViR @) FrAIER 2 BAEZEEEEATEREZ (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is
B (AZERZELE) HEBEEEAE - a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
= Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Y= BERBMHRTE
SR RERSWORGTAEAFNLEARAE "V ok cuonet e st somons s
SliE - —IEM%  BERRENHACELBEERS yime ' proper, P aup

comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

ZEEEEZEHBERIREXAZHFEHERVENE . ) " ) L
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

B R
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
major recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Authority recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over 25 years
Leasehold improvements 10%
Plant and machinery 10%

Fixture, fitting and equipment ~ 10% - 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Authority is the lessor, assets leased by the Authority under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Authority is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost
and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

The buildings are erected on lands granted at nil consideration by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at
fair value through the income statement, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Authority determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case
of financial assets record at fair value through the income statement.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Authority commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Authority’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, time deposits,
accounts and other receivables, and listed equity investments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in income
statement in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets in
listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available-for-sale are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated at fair value through the income statement. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the income statement in other expenses.
Interest and dividends whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively, and are
recognised in the income statement as income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Authority has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset,
but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;

e and either (a) the Authority has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Authority has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Where the Authority has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Authority’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Authority
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Authority has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Authority could be required to
repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the Authority of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Authority first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Authority determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’ s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to expenditure in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Authority assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment below its cost. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original
cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value
has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of investments that are traded in active markets is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Financial liabilities

The Authority’s financial liabilities include accounts and other payables. Financial
liabilities are recognised when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Authority and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) training levy income, based on a fixed percentage on the F.0.B. value of
clothing (including footwear) items exported from Hong Kong on a monthly
basis advised from the Customs and Excise Department;

(b) dividend income, when the rights to receive payment have been established;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial assets;
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FRBRIEREEABEESTEURE - AEEREEER
—IEERAMFEEME RS RAEAEE ( [REEE
1) - HRREEERFME @RS - WK
RIBTE ST ENRE - REMEFTARERR - BEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(d) training course and industrial project income, on a time proportion basis over
the period of the respective course and project; and

(e) Government grants, on a matching basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Authority provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment
contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave
which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension scheme contributions

The Authority operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme” ) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Authority in an
independently administered fund. The Authority’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants have been received for organising projects to improve
corporate social responsibility among clothing industry. Government grants
received for which related expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included
in deferred income in the statement of financial position. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

INCOME TAX

The Authority has been exempted under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance from all taxes under the Ordinance. As a result, no provision for Hong
Kong profits tax or deferred taxation is required in these financial statements.



5 YR BERERMR
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BF HEEE BEER EEEE-

|

|

|

|

|

Buildings Leasehold HEE REBRRE |

improvements Plant and Fixture, |

machinery fitting and |

equipment =¥ |

Total |

BT BT BT BT BT |

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ |

2012 12 A 31 8 31 December 2012 |

|

A2012% 1818 A1 January 2012: :

AR Cost 19,413,409 8,120,574 221,169 5,108,722 32,863,874 |

RRITE Accumulated |

depreciation (19,413,409) (1,885,438) (107,193) (2,938,067)  (24,344,107) |

REFE Net carrying amount - 6,235,136 113,976 2,170,655 8,519,767 |

|

|

7201251818 At1January 2012, net |

NBRBEEINE of accumulated |

depreciation - 6,235,136 113,976 2,170,655 8,519,767 |

nNE Additions - - - 258,563 258,563 |

HE Disposals - - - (7,232) 7,232 |

FRITERE Depreciation provided |

during the year - (812,057) @2,117) (621,100)  (1,455,274) |

72012412 B 31 B » At 31 December 2012, :
HREEINE net of accumulated

depreciation - 5,423,079 91,859 1,800,886 7,315,824 :

|

72012412 B 31 B : At 31 December 2012: |

2% Cost 19,413,409 8,120,574 221,169 5,311,342 33,066,494 |

RRENE Accumulated |

depreciation (19,413,409) (2,697,495) (129,310) (3,510,456)  (25,750,670) |

IREFE Net carrying amount - 5,423,079 91,859 1,800,886 7,315,824 |

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|
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I
| 5 % BER®RHBE (&)
I PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
| BF AEaE BER BEEE.
| Buildings Leasehold e BHERRE
I improvements Plantand  Fixture, fitting
| machinery and a5
| equipment Total
| BT BT BT BT BT
| HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
| 20111283180 31 December 2011
: MA2011FE1A1R8: At 1 January 2011:
[ KA Cost 19,413,409 8,120,574 221,169 5,310,790 33,065,942
| 2RIE Accumulated

depreciation (19,413,409)  (1,073,381) (85,076)  (2,354,523)  (22,926,389)
I
: IREFE Net carrying amount = 7,047,193 136,093 2,956,267 10,139,553
| 2011 E1 1B At1January 2011,
I MNBREBETE net of accumulated
I depreciation - 7,047,193 136,093 2,956,267 10,139,553
: wnE Additions - - - 392,787 392,787
| HE Disposals - - - (256,223) (256,223)
| FRITERE Depreciation provided
| during the year - (812,057) (©2,117) (922,176)  (1,756,350)
| 32011 F 12831 8+ At31 December 2011,
I HBRBREIFE net of accumulated
| depreciation - 6,235,136 113,976 2,70,655 8,519,767
: 72011 12 A 31 B: At 31 December 2011:
| AR Cost 19,413,409 8,120,574 221,169 5,108,722 32,863,874
| 2BEIFE Accumulated

epreciation 413, ,885, , ,938, 344,

| d iati (19,413,409) (1,885,438) (107,193) (2,938,067)  (24,344,107)
| EEEE Net carrying amount - 6,235,136 113,976 2,170,655 8,519,767
I
I
[ _
| ZERFERBEBBIITHRERF USSR EREN The buildings are erected on lands granted at nil consideration by
I Tk o the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
I
I
I
I
I
|
L - __
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6. FHHHERSE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2012 2011
BT BT
HK$ HK$
BERLETRARE  BRAAMER Listed equity investments, at fair value:
Hong Kong 119,753,900 92,927,000

FR - IABEEREMEE KRS PRIAMNTMHE
ERAREEFEES 25,406,460 BT (2011 F :
BB EE A 23,994,000 BT) o

AR EBFEREEATHEESREEREERE
HMARRENREARSRE -

ETRARENDABEDRTSRETEH -

IRFBEFNRAZSRENTHERE > FLHEH
WRBHMER » 48515 122,241,900 BT °

During the year, the gross gain of the Authority's available-for-sale
investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$25,406,460 (2011: loss of HK$23,994,000).

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and
have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The market values of the Authority's listed equity investments
as at the date of approval of these financial statements were
approximately HK$122,241,900 in aggregate.

7. FEURRR
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FE UK R X Accounts receivables 2,731,999 2,294,227

JIRREEFHNREMAUEERE - FEH R
B30 H BEEFAESRSEEHE  JHEREE
FREZEUPIRS  SHHEBEREEERR 5
REBAESETHERAMELE - ER ERIER -
HRIRBEVIRRESRSETEEENETS ¥
TEEBIETNEERR - IRBBRMEEE
Wik R ESRFEEMAERRIHEMETIER - B
RRBTEE -

The Authority's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally around 30 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Authority seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
an accounting department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Authority's accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Authority does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its accounts
receivable balances. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.
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7. MERIRSR ()
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

FEWRRFURERESSOT : The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$ HK$
W1B1H At 1 January - 30,789
Y U 5= A R0 0R Amount written off as uncollectible - (30,789)
R12A31H At 31 December - -

2011 12 A 31 B > B3F U L fr & FE Wik SOR &
BEBERENERIREREHES 30,789 BT -
B B 5 BT R T B A 30,789 38 7T o 1B B R {E #Y FE
WIRR T HREE A RM AR RERTEREFWE
HIFRIE ©

WARAE H B ENEURIRFAIRE DM WT -

As at 31 December 2011, included in the above provision for
impairment of accounts receivable was a provision for individually
impaired accounts receivable of HK$30,789 with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$30,789. The individually impaired accounts
receivable related to customers that were in default were not
expected to be recovered.

An aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

2012 2011
BT BT
HK$ HK$

WEAHLHAERARIOR1EBA Neither past due nor impaired and
less than 1 month past due 2,012,332 1,747,072
a1 E3@A 1 to 3 months past due 505,677 333,165
BHSEAMUE Over 3 months past due 213,990 213,990
2,731,999 2,294,227

VEEBHRBRENERTEDERZEFTRNE
PSR RYERRRLE -

180 2 1B 36 SR (B A9 FE R IR T B A B B B A B2 3|
REEREARZTHNBIES - REBELR
JIRBEERRHEER L SEHRTRBEREG 2
HEFEEZTEEAEY MASHEKDERA
AEHUE -
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Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Authority. Based on past experience, the members of
the Authority are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.



_____________________________________ -
|
|

8. WMRE - HeREMMEIER :
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES |

2012 2011 |

BT BT |

HK$ HK$ |

FERIE Prepayments 295,838 47,449 |
1% & K H At FE IR X Deposits and other receivables 369,889 1,032,227 |
665,727 1,079,676 :

-~ o —_— |

T EEYEAPREE cMEERE MG None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The |
FEWUIRFRAV A5 8% - T3 HAND M R AC 8% o financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables |
for which there was no recent history of default. |

|

|

9. He&RHB&EFEEH |
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS |

2012 2011 |

B s |

HK$ HKs |

HERIIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 8,263,066 9,274,343 :
EHFR Time deposits 1,709,423 1,703,962 |
HeRkREEHEER Cash and cash equivalents 9,972,489 10,978,305 |
|

RITERASARTEFRFNETE » REUEBRE Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank |
FEWA - ERIIGFFWRESER > MEIZH—K deposits rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying |
Z=HETENEHTHER » YUETHEFERAZE periods of between one day and three months depending on the |
T BEFIS WA - MITHERFMEAREFIBIT  immediate cash requirements of the Authority, and earn interest at |
T3 HANG $B R SR 8% o the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances |
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of |

default. |

|

10. FEFHIRSR I
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE |

N . |
EERAERTE E—RER 30 BRBEN - The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally |
settled on 30-day terms. |

|

|

|

|

|

|

_____________________________________ 4
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-

|

|

| 1. HtiEMARSRRESER

| OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

| 2012 2011

| B B

I HKS HK$

|

| EEWA Deferred income 2,169,759 1,180,539

: B AR Other payables 643,735 315,459

|  EEA Accruals 1,735,019 2,347,972

|

I 4,548,513 3,843,970

|

| HuEAERE RS  wEEE=EAREM - Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term

| of three months.

|

|

|

|12, B

| GENERAL RESERVE

|

| REBIEIR (RKZE) HROFE7 6 KB In accordance with the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)

| BUFNEFANES () TEERFRFRES Ordinance Section 17, all funds of the Authority that are not

| BENTHRERNAZENGERR ( “BMEA" ) & immediately required may be (i) deposited on fixed deposit in any

| HEHR - RAEASERERMERNRITRES bank or savings bank nominated by the Financial Secretary of

| R1T ) () REMBABEME TREEINHB the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
RABENSERE - ("Financial Secretary") either generally or, in any particular

| case, for that purpose; or (ii) subject to the prior approval of the

| Financial Secretary invested in such investments as the Authority

I thinks fit.

|

|

|

| 13. BRRERME

| NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

: FEFRERS Major non-cash transaction

| REAFER > JIRFERE—TJHEERERREZ During the current year, the Company received dividend from one
BRE > ZREUFEBLTRAREZEBREAR of its available-for-sale investments in the form of ordinary shares

| =3imp - 2o AEE - AZR 1,420,440 BT © of a Hong Kong listed equity investment with fair value at date of

I grant of HK$1,420,440.

|

|

|

|

|

|

L
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14. &if |
COMMITMENTS :
JRBARERRZERFIENT ¢ The Company had the following capital commitments at the end of the |
reporting period: |

2012 2011 |

5T BT

HK$ HK$ |

ERT#{B i R B4 Contracted, but not provided for: |
W BEREZE Property, plant and equipment 305,231 -

|

|

|

|

|

15. BEALXEZS |
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS |
HRBEEERAS ZHE - Compensation of key management personnel of the Authority: |
|

2012 2011 |

BT wx |

HKS Hks |

|

EHRESRR Short term employee benefits 1,729,000 1,680,000 |
ZEEER Post-employment benefits 728,750 12,000 :
TRFEEEEAE ZRENEEE Total compensation paid to |
key management personnel 2,457,750 1,692,000 |

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

_____________________________________ 4
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S -

I

I

| 16, £FTRER

| FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

| MBEHETER 5 Eem T ENKREE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

N instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

: mT i h d of th i iod foll

2012 2012 R A

I SMEE Financial assets B WUIR 7R EMEE

I Loans and Available-

I receivables for-sale &%

| financial assets Total

| BT BT BT

| HK$ HKS$ HK$

: AHHERE Available-for-sale investments - 119,753,000 119,753,000

| EUWIRER Accounts receivable 2,731,999 - 2,731,999

I _

SRMEEEEREMS Financial assets included in prepayments,

I

| RE - ReRHEM deposits and other receivables

I R (K 8) (note 8) 369,889 - 369,889

| B®ERRELEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 9,972,489 - 9,972,489

I

| 13,074,337 119,753,000 132,827,377

I

I

| _

| &mAR Financial liabilities SHas

| 1 88 B AR

Financial

I

| liabilities at
amortised cost

| BT

I HK$

I

| EAIRRK Accounts payable 290,470

| cRBEaEEEMEN Financial liabilities included in other

: IR ERTE A payables and accruals 2,175,573

I 2,466,043

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

|

L - - e e -
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16. SMTAE (&) |

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) |

RBEHEELER S HeRIANKREE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial :
mT (&) instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(continued) :

2011 2011 At E |

eMEE Financial assets BRE TREE |

FE W R R Available- |

Loans and for-sale a3t |

receivables financial assets Total |

BT BT BT |

HK$ HK$ HK$ |

AHHERE Available-for-sale investments - 92,927,000 92,927,000 |

FEUR R SR Accounts receivable 2,294,227 - 2,294,227 :

ﬁﬁjﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ Financial assets included in prepayments, |

R Eféﬁﬁﬂﬁ deposits and other receivables |

PR (FfaE 8) (note 8) 1,032,227 - 1,032,227 |

R, |

RERRAESEERR Cash and cash equivalents 10,978,305 - 10978305

14,304,759 92,927,000 107,231,759 :

|

|

SemAE Financial liabilities cRaE |

maEmA |

Financial |

liabilities at |

amortised cost |

BT |

HK$ |

FEASIRFR Accounts payable 122,845 :

SREEEEEMEM Financial liabilities included in other |

IR R EFEA payables and accruals 2,425,062 |

2,547,907 :

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

_____________________________________ 4
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|

| 17. DRBEFHREE

| FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

|

| HREBRAUATEREBUBEERIEESHBIAMNA  The Authority uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the

| SfEE: fair values of financial instruments:

| .

| -8 REMREESAGBNERTENERE (K Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

| HE) RFEZDIAE markets for identical assets or liabilities

| EE  REGERMEIRAABEEATENS Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which

| B ASH (WHEEMEEEEE) k58  all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are

| ZRARE observable, either directly or indirectly

|

| E=F: REAESNEIERANEEEATENS Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all

| EHASHUFERTEENHEEE (7 inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based

| AHREBASE) RTEZANRE on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

|

|

| N

| BEEBRARBENHE : Assets measured at fair value: F1EBREET

| Level 1 and total
BT

: HKS

| R2012F12831H8 As at 31 December 2012

| AMHEHERE Available-for-sale investments TR

| THREIR (FE6) — listed equity instruments (note 6) S

|

| A2011E12 831 B As at 31 December 2011

| A ERE Available-for-sale investments 92,927,000

| FHBRETE (Hite) — listed equity instruments (note 6)

|

| R2012F128 3 HEEFER  AREESHREE During the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no transfers of fair

| REIBRE2EZHLEBEMER UREREE value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out

| ASEHEIE - of Level 3.

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

L ________________
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18. MERBEETENEHREE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

FRBNERTAURETRBTES EHEAR
AHEHERARERET -HFEZSERMIAEER
JRBNELERES - IRBTAZEREEL B
BPEEEANEMCEREEREE  HIWEKIR
AR MRS

FA-RIIKREHWBERLBETAMEMTENRS -

JRBNERTAFRSRNEIZRABRAT SRR
FEERRADESRAR ZEFZIRBEL L
MEERBHNEERER - EMENT -

TR

HMBAZNTSEREZDEAR  TERREIRBHT
HHERARIREN BT SERER - JIRFBH
AHEHERFARERBTEIS A ETHRG - LR
BREMETERNTSERS - IRBREUER—F
TRRBHREASFER -

EBRZAMESRNER > JBRREAREHETE
BHBRERZRTERE  UREARSERERREE
HaRIR

The Authority's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, time deposits and available-for-sale investments.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Authority's operations. The Authority has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable and
accounts payable, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Authority's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Authority's financial instruments
are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Market risk

The Authority’s exposure to the risk of changes in market prices relates
primarily to the Authority’s available-for-sale investments with floating market
prices. The Authority's available-for-sale investments are listed on the Hong
Kong stock exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. The members of the Authority manage this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.

The market equity indices for the Hong Kong stock exchange, at the close
of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points during the year were as
follows:

2012 £ SRALS 2011 & (SRS
12A31H 2012 12A431H 2011
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2012 2012 2011 2011
B8 -EEEH
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index 22,657 18,056/22,660 18,434 24,420/16,250
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|
|
| 18, MERREERMENREBE (&)
| FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
[R—— = . )

TR () Market risk (continued)
| FEEAERE R B R 2 R T R R The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 1% change in the
| canEyey UHEAEHEE  BRARER fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held constant
| HEBELEAZAABEESEH 1% BEER and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the end
| ZHREE -EoWMENEFEHEERERR of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-
| BUHEERENEGFRERRTEREZEE for-sale investments, the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale
| WERTEEmMZE - investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors such as
| impairment which might impact on the income statement.
|
' g/ GAd)  Em/ G
| IREE B
| Increase/ Increase/
| (decrease) (decrease)
| in carrying amount in equity
| % BT
| HK$
| 2012 2012
|
| AHEEESETRARE Available-for-sale investments listed in Hong Kong +1% 1,197,539
: AHEHESE ETRARE Available-for-sale investments listed in Hong Kong -1% (1,197,539)
|
| 2011 2011
: AfHERE EmRARE Available-for-sale investments listed in Hong Kong +1% 929,270
| AHEEEE LTRARE Available-for-sale investments listed in Hong Kong -1% (929,270)
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
L
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18. MBERRETEENENHRBR ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

EEEE
IRERERERFERFNE=FETIS - &
RINRBOEE  ERREEGRIETIZNE
FHARNERES  HRERFEIIRREZTER
BrER R - HERMBESETHIEBRS o bboh
HREEFEERRIRRNERER - MIKRR
BIRREBIE FEKX o

JmEEMMemEE (BFERERRESEHEEE -
THEESHMERE) FEARKERZHTFEN
BEeRBNZEERT AREFERR -

HRIRBRADBREREERFNE=FRMHR
% HMERER JRBABBNETNEERR

mBE T A
JRANECRBEREMNEENHEERE U
HSESEEMEEEE BT E

R|EDRETER - JIRBEBREGERBER - R
BEARBANSK  FRAOT :

Credit risk

The Authority trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Authority’ s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are required to pay deposit in advance except
for certain customers who have signed strategic alliance agreements
to jointly develop ongoing projects with the Authority. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Authority’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Authority's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale
investments, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Authority provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirements for collateral.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Authority.

Liquidity risk

The Authority’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through investment and disposal of
available-for-sale investments.

The maturity profile of the Authority’s financial liabilities as at the
end of reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

BIUAZEFEIHREE | Independent Auditors’ Report 67



| B R R M

I NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. MERBEETENEMRBR (W)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

mEBELTEE (#)

Liquidity risk (continued)

RERFHDA1F
On demand or less than one year

2012 2011
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FEAT IR TR Accounts payable 290,470 122,845

e FEEREEMEMIRRR Financial liabilities included in
EtER other payables and accruals 2,175,573 2,425,062
2,466,043 2,547,907

BAREHE Capital management

JIRBEAEENIRABERREIRBFTHEEE
BN  URRISBENERLE  RIFHET -

JRREEEAEARE  RELERBECEERA
HEEZARBEFELAR BERESHAFHBELRE
B IRREME IR (HKRE) KROFERE
REEHESRME - IRBAFZEMIMIRZE
AEREE - HE2012F 12 A 31 BR 2011 F 12
AN BLEE BR BEIBRFALELE -

19 pgERaE

The primary objective of the Authority’s capital management is to
safeguard the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Authority manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Authority may adjust and manage all the funds
and property of the Authority in accordance with the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance. The Authority is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NREESZEECR 2013 F 4 A 22 HEM KRG B IR
KRR -
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the members of the Authority on 22 April 2013.



®

‘l HORE I B A
CLOTHING INDUSTRY TRAINING AUTHORITY

http://www.cita.org.hk



	248832 CITA Annual Report 2012_05 (P1 - P20)
	248832 CITA Annual Report 2012_05 (P21 - P40)
	248832 CITA Annual Report 2012_05 (P41 - P60)
	248832 CITA Annual Report 2012_05 (P61 - P71)

